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DIRECTOR OF DEPARTMENT
)

OF PUBLIC SAFETY,
)




)



Petitioner,
)


vs.

)

No. 11-1624 PO



)

LEON F. PULLEN,
 
)




)




)



Respondent.
)

DECISION 


Leon F. Pullen is subject to discipline because he committed criminal offenses.  
Procedure


On August 8, 2011, the Director of the Department of Public Safety (“the Director”) filed a complaint seeking to discipline Pullen.  Pullen was served with our notice of complaint/notice of hearing by certified mail on February 3, 2012. He did not file an answer.  


We held a hearing on June 27, 2012.  Lacy Cansler represented the Director.
 Neither Wilson nor anyone representing him appeared.  The case became ready for our decision on the same date, when the transcript was filed. 


We make our findings of fact from the Director’s affidavit of licensure and the certified criminal records from the United States District Court, Eastern District of Missouri submitted by the Director and admitted into evidence at the hearing. The following facts are not disputed. 
Findings of Fact

1. Pullen is licensed as a peace officer and was so at all relevant times.  He was employed as a police officer with the Uplands Park Police Department in Uplands Park, Missouri.  
A.H.
2. In February or March of 2009, Pulled called A.H. in response to a prostitution advertisement posted by A.H. and arranged to meet her at a hotel room she had rented in          St. Louis.

3. Once Pullen was inside of the hotel room, he identified himself as a police officer and told A.H. that she was under arrest, while displaying his firearm and handcuffs by opening his jacket.
4. Pullen told A.H. that she could be arrested or she could have sex with him. 

5. A.H., afraid of the gun, perceived Pullen’s manipulation as a threat of violence and submitted to vaginal intercourse. 

6. Pullen took $100 cash from A.H.’s clothing and her laptop computer.

7. Pullen committed the crime of Deprivation of Rights under a color of law in violation of 18 U.S.C. § 242, by depriving A.H. of the rights secured and protected by the Constitution and laws of the United States not to be deprived of liberty without due process of law, which includes the right to bodily integrity.  Specifically, Pullen caused A.H. to engage in a sexual act, by using force against A.H. and by placing A.H. in fear of death, serious bodily injury and kidnapping. 
L.H. and M.H.
8. In May of 2009, Pullen responded to a prostitution advertisement posted by L.H. and arranged a meeting posing as a customer.

9. Pullen pulled L.H. and her companion M.H. over in a marked patrol vehicle using his overhead dome lights.

10. Pullen repeatedly pulled at his jacket so that M.H. could see that his sidearm was readily visible.  

11. Pullen told M.H. to unzip her jeans.  Frightened M.H. took down her pants and Pullen fingered her vagina, penetrating her slightly. 

12. Pullen then directed M.H. to take all of the cash from her purse and L.H.’s purse.  Pullen took cash from M.H. and L.H.

13. Pullen committed the crime of Deprivation of Rights under a color of law in violation of 18 U.S.C. § 242, by depriving M.H. of the rights secured and protected by the Constitution and laws of the United States not to be deprived of liberty without due process of law, which includes the right to bodily integrity.  Specifically, Pullen caused M.H. to engage in a sexual act, by using force against M.H. and by placing M.H. in fear of death, serious bodily injury and kidnapping.
D.H.
14. In June of 2009, Pullen responded to a prostitution advertisement D.H. posted on the internet.
15. Pullen pulled up in an Uplands Park patrol car and showed D.H. a copy of the internet ad and told her she was being arrested.

16. Pullen handcuffed D.H. and began to frisk her while running his hands under her clothes. 

17. When D.H. started to cry and protest, Pullen told her, “I can do what I want, I am a police officer.” 

18. Pullen stepped behind D.H. and inserted his hand into her pants.  He rubbed D.H’s vagina and slipped a finger inside of her. 

19. Pullen removed $600 and D.H.’s cell phone from her purse and put the phone and money in his pants pocket and told D.H. that he can keep whatever he wants.  Pullen also took her identification card.

20. Pullen committed the crime of Deprivation of Rights under a color of law in violation of 18 U.S.C. § 242, by depriving D.H. of the rights secured and protected by the Constitution and laws of the United States not to be deprived of liberty without due process of law, which includes the right to bodily integrity.  Specifically, Pullen caused D.H. to engage in a sexual act, by using force against D.H. and by placing D.H. in fear of death, serious bodily injury and kidnapping.
D.S. and B.M. 
21. J.B. was employed as an auxiliary officer with the Uplands Park Police Department at all relevant times. 

22. On July 15, 2009, Pullen responded to a prostitution advertisement placed on the internet by D.S. and arranged to meet her at a vacant property in Uplands Park.  

23. Pullen and J.B. detained D.S. and her companion B.M. at the vacant property while they were on duty and dressed in full police uniform, including a badge and sidearm.

24. Pullen ordered D.S. and B.M. from their vehicle and demanded D.S.’s identification.  As she produced her identification, Pullen rubbed his groin area against D.S. and scared her.  

25. Pullen told D.S. that she could surrender all of her money to him, or she could get naked in front of him.  D.S. became more fearful and asked Pullen just to arrest her.  

26. J.B. demanded cash from B.M. and took $270 from B.M.’s purse.  

27. Pullen directed D.S. and her companion back into D.S.’s vehicle and instructed her to follow him to the police station. 

28. At the police station Pullen directed D.S. to an office in the rear of the building and ordered her to remove her clothing, including her underwear, and sit down on a chair in the office. 

29. Pullen got down on his knees and forcibly performed oral sex on D.S., while ignoring her pleas to stop.

30. Pullen gave a voluntary statement denying that he had ever met D.S., and denied engaging in any sexual activity while on duty.  However, DNA evidence links Pullen to the sexual assault on D.S.
31. The Federal Bureau of Investigation (“FBI”) began an investigation.  A witness consensually recorded telephone calls to Pullen.  On the recordings, Pullen confirmed that he met with D.S. and told the witness to deny everything and that no one would believe the victims.  

32. Following his arrest on September 20, 2009, Pullen told the Federal Bureau of Investigation (“FBI”) that he had never taken money from D.S.  
33. On July 15, 2009, Pullen committed the crime of conspiracy to violate the deprivation of rights under color of law in violation of 18 U.S.C. § 241, by conspiring, combining, confederating and agreeing, to wrongfully seize the property of D.S., thereby willfully depriving her of rights and privileges secured and protected by the Constitution and laws of the United States, specifically, the right to be free from an unreasonable seizure by one acting under color of law. 
34. On July 15, 2009, Pullen committed the crime of Deprivation of Rights under Color of Law in violation of 18 U.S.C. § 242, by willfully depriving D.S. of the rights secured and protected by the Constitution and laws of the United States not to be deprived of liberty without 
due process of law, which includes the right to bodily integrity.  Specifically, Pullen caused D.S. to engage in a sexual act, by using force against D.S. and by placing D.S. in fear of death, serious bodily injury and kidnapping. 
35. On July 15, 2009, Pullen committed the crime of Conspiracy to Commit Interference with Commerce in violation of 18 U.S.C. § 1951, by conspiring to obtain property not due to Pullen or his office, from, and with the consent of D.S. under color of official right. 
36. On July 15, 2009, Pullen committed the crimes of Conspiracy to Commit Interference with Commerce and Interference with Commerce by Threats or Violence in violation of 18 U.S.C.  §§ 1951 and 2, by obtaining property and attempting to obtain property not due to Pullen or his office, from, and with the consent of B.M., under color of official right.  
37. Pullen committed the crime of Tampering with a Witness in violation of 18 U.S.C. § 1512(b)(3) by knowingly attempting to intimidate, threaten, and corruptly persuade a witness by instructing the witness to lie about and deny contact with D.S. and others with the intent to hinder, delay, and prevent the communication to a law enforcement officer of information relating to the commission and possible commission of a federal offense.
38. Pullen committed the crime of Making False Statements in violation of 18 U.S.C. § 1001 by falsely stating that he had not taken money from D.S. when, in truth and fact as Pullen then knew, he had seized cash from D.S. on or about July 15, 2009.
Guilty Pleas

39. Pullen pled guilty to the following charges:

a. Conspiracy to Violate Deprivation of Rights Under Color of Law, in violation of 18 U.S.C. § 241

b. Four counts of Deprivation of Rights Under Color of Law, in violation of 18 U.S.C. § 242

c. Conspiracy to Commit Interference With Commerce by Threats or Violence, in violation of 18 U.S.C. § 1951

d. Interference with Commerce by Threats or Violence, in violation of 18 U.S.C. § 1951 and 2

e. Tampering with a Witness, in violation of 18 U.S.C. § 1512(b)(3)

f. Making False Statements, in violation of 18 U.S.C. § 1001.

40. Pullen was sentenced to 300 months in the custody of the United States Bureau of Prisons.  
Conclusions of Law

We have jurisdiction to hear this case.
  The Director has the burden of proving that Pullen has committed an act for which the law allows discipline.
  The Director argues that there is cause for discipline under § 590.080:

1. The director shall have cause to discipline any peace officer licensee who:

* * *
(2) Has committed any criminal offense, whether or not a criminal charge has been filed[.]
18 U.S.C. § 241 provides: 

If two or more persons conspire to injure, oppress, threaten or intimidate any person in any State, Territory, Commonwealth Possession, or District in the free exercise or enjoyment of any right or privilege secured to him by the Constitution or laws of the United States, or because of his having so exercised the same; or

If two or more persons go in disguise on the highway, or on the premises of another, with intent to prevent or hinder his free exercise or enjoyment of any right or privilege so secured--

They shall be fined under this title or imprisoned not more than ten years, or both; and if death results from the acts committed in 
violation of this section or if such acts include kidnapping or an attempt to kidnap, aggravated sexual abuse or an attempt to commit aggravated sexual abuse, or an attempt to kill, they shall be fined under this title or imprisoned for any term of years or for life, or both, or may be sentenced to death. 
Pullen committed the crime of Conspiracy to Violate Deprivation of Rights Under Color of Law when he conspired with J.B. to willfully deprive D.S. of her rights and privilege to be free from an unreasonable seizure by one acting under color of law.  
18 U.S.C. § 242 provides:

Whoever, under color of any law, statute, ordinance, regulation, or custom, willfully subjects any person in any State, Territory, Commonwealth, Possession, or District to the deprivation of any rights, privileges, or immunities secured or protected by the Constitution or laws of the United States, or to different punishments, pains, or penalties, on account of such person being an alien, or by reason of his color, or race, than are prescribed for the punishment of citizens, shall be fined under this title or imprisoned not more than one year, or both; and if bodily injury results from the acts committed in violation of this section or if such acts include the use, attempted use, or threatened use of a dangerous weapon, explosives, or fire, shall be fined under this title or imprisoned not more than ten years, or both; and if death results from the acts committed in violation of this section or if such acts include kidnapping or an attempt to kidnap, aggravated sexual abuse, or an attempt to kill, shall be fined under this title, or imprisoned for any term of years or for life, or both, or may be sentenced to death. 

He committed the crime of Deprivation of Rights Under Color of Law when he caused D.S., A.H., M.H., and D.H. to engage in a sexual act by using force against them and by placing them in fear of death, serious bodily injury, and kidnapping.  
18 U.S.C. § 1951 provides in pertinent part:

Whoever in any way or degree obstructs, delays, or affects commerce or the movement of any article or commodity in commerce, by robbery or extortion or attempts or conspires so to do, or commits or threatens physical violence to any person or property in furtherance of a plan or purpose to do anything in 
violation of this section shall be fined under this title or imprisoned not more than twenty years, or both. 

Pullen committed the crime of Conspiracy to Commit Interference With Commerce by Threats or Violence by conspiring with J.B. to obtain property from D.S and B.M.  
18 U.S.C. § 1952 provides in pertinent part:

(a) Whoever travels in interstate or foreign commerce or uses the mail or any facility in interstate or foreign commerce, with intent to—

(1) distribute the proceeds of any unlawfully activity; or

(2) commit any crime of violence to further any unlawful activity; or

(3) otherwise promote, manage, establish, carry on, or facilitate the promotion, management, establishment, or carrying on, of any unlawful activity,

and thereafter performs or attempts to perform—

(A) an act described in paragraph (1) or (3) shall be fined under this title, imprisoned not more than 5 years, or both; or

(B) an act described in paragraph (2) shall be fined under this title, imprisoned for not more than 20 years, or both, and if death results shall be imprisoned for any term of years or for life. 

Pullen committed the crime of Interference with Commerce by Threats or Violence by obtaining property and attempting to obtain property from B.M.  

18 U.S.C. § 1512(b)(3) provides:

(b)Whoever knowingly uses intimidation, threatens, or corruptly persuades another person, or attempts to do so, or engages in misleading conduct toward another person, with intent to—

(1) influence, delay, or prevent the testimony of any person in an official proceeding;

(2) cause or induce any person to—

(A) withhold testimony, or withhold a record, document, or other object, from an official proceeding;

(B) alter, destroy, mutilate, or conceal an object with intent to impair the object’s integrity or availability for use in an official proceeding;

(C)evade legal process summoning that person to appear as a witness, or to produce a record, document, or other object, in an official proceeding; or

(D) be absent from an official proceeding to which such person has been summoned by legal process; or

(3) hinder, delay, or prevent the communication to a law enforcement officer or judge of the United States of information relating to the commission or possible commission of a Federal offense or a violation of conditions of probation supervised release, parole, or release pending judicial proceedings; 

shall be fined under this title or imprisoned not more than ten years, or both. 

Pullen committed the crime of Tampering with a Witness when he instructed a witness to lie to the FBI and deny contact with D.S.  
18 U.S.C. § 1001 provides:

Except as otherwise provided in this section, whoever, in any matter within the jurisdiction of the executive, legislative, or judicial branch of the Government of the United States, knowingly and willfully—

(1) falsifies, conceals, or covers up by any trick,

scheme, or device a material fact;

(2) makes any materially false, factitious, or fraudulent statement or representation; or

(3) makes or uses any false writing or document knowing the same to contain any materially false, factitious, or fraudulent statement or entry;

shall be fined under this title, imprisoned not more than 5 years or, if the offense involves international or domestic terrorism (as defined in section 2331), imprisoned not more than 8 years, or both. If the matter relates to an offense under chapter 109A, 109B, 110, or 117, or section 1591, then the term of imprisonment imposed under this section shall be not more than 8 years.

Pullen committed the crime of Making False Statements when he told the FBI that he had not taken money from D.S. when in fact he did.  

Pullen also pled guilty to these crimes and was sentenced to 300 months in prison.  A conviction resulting from a guilty plea collaterally estops the issue of whether the person committed the criminal offense.
  
Therefore, Pullen is subject to discipline under § 590.080.1(2). 
Summary

Pullen is subject to discipline under §590.080.1(2).

SO ORDERED on January 4, 2013.


________________________________



NIMROD T. CHAPEL, JR.



Commissioner

� Ms. Cansler is a law student who is certified to appear before this Commission under Rule 13 of the Missouri Court Rules Vol. I. 2012. 


� Section 590.080.2.  Statutory references are to the Missouri Revised Statutes Supp. 2011 unless otherwise noted. 


� Section 590.080.2. 


� Carr v. Holt, 134 S.W.3d 647, 649 (Mo. App., E.D. 2004) (citing James v. Paul, 49 S.W.3d 678, 682-83 (Mo. banc 2001)).
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